CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - AUGUST 7, 2024

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on August 7, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. in the Multipurpose
Room #CHI157 of the Richardson City Hall, 2360 Campbell Creek Boulevard, Suite 525,
Richardson, TX.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bryan Marsh, Chairman
Kenneth Southard, Vice Chairman
Gary Beach, Commissioner
Joe Costantino, Commissioner
Michael Keller, Commissioner
Sebrena Bohnsack, Commissioner
Byron Purdy, Commissioner

MEMBERS ABSENT: Nate Roberts, Commissioner
Rebecca Poynter, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Director of Development Services
Charles Goft, Assistant City Manager
Derica Peters, Senior Planner
Amber Pollan, Planner-Strategic Planning
Anna Jo Castaneda, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regularbusiness meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff
regarding staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken.

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

1. Approval of Minutes of the regular business meeting of July 16, 2024.

Motion: Vice Chairman Southard made a motion to approve the minutes as presented.
Commissioner Beach seconded the Motion. Motion passed 7-0.

PUBLIC HEARING

2. Zoning File 24-17 Special Permit — Coram Deo Academy: Consider and act on a request
for approval of a Special Permit for a private school on an 8.6-acre lot currently zoned Local
Retail LR-M(2) located within an existing building at 1301 Abrams Road, on the east side of
Abrams Road, north of Walnut Street. Owner: Don Kim, Binnerri Presbyterian Church. Staff:
Derica Peters.

Ms. Derica Peters began by stating the subject site is located at 1301 Abrams Road, northeast of
the intersection of Abrams Road and Walnut Street and is zoned LR-M(2) and is developed with
a 70,000 square foot church. Properties to the north and east have also been developed with
churches, to the south is the city of Dallas and a convenience station, and to the west is an
undeveloped tract of land owned by Richardson ISD.



2

Ms. Peters advised that the church currently occupies the building but intends to vacate the
building, with Coram Deo Academy requesting Special Permit for a private school. They intend
to relocate their current school in Dallas to this site and repurpose the building to accommodate
school for grades PreK through 12 grade. The building is a two (2) story forty-five (45) foot tall
building at the highest point of the structure and the site is 8.6 acres that includes five (5) acres
that are inside the City of Richardson and the remaining three (3) acres are in the City of Dallas.

Ms. Peters stated ZF 24-02 was last heard earlier this year before the CPC and-was approved,
however the case was denied at City Council; therefore, this is a reapplication for case ZF 24-02.
The applicant, Coram Deo Academy provides a unique university model style instruction where
students are on campus for only two-three (2-3) days out of the week while the remainder of the
week they finish their instruction at home. They intend to relocate 442 students from their current
location in Dallas to this site with a total of 748 students and with an alternating schedule, a
maximum of 400 students would be on campus per day.

Ms. Peters commented the applicant intends to make enhancements to the entrance of the building
to maintain traffic control from the east and west; they will add two additional playground areas
to the north of the site to meet the state and city requirements for indoor and outdoor play areas. A
fence has been proposed in the front yard setback to be eight (8) feet tall constructed with tubular
metal to enclose and secure the campus. Additional HVAC units will be added and screened along
with the existing units with a pre-finished metal screening wall which will be in the northeast of
the property adjacent to the required storm shelter.

Ms. Peters stated the applicant will provide a total of 367 parking spaces on site which includes
200 parking spaces for students, staff, and teachers and 82 parking spaces for visitors. The
applicant has provided traffic and queuing exhibits for our Transportation and Mobility
Department which demonstrates all the necessary queuing. A maximum of 79 vehicles will be
onsite and will not spill-into the right-of-way for stacking with staggered drop-off and pick-up
times and cars will be directed to enter the site from the main driveway on Abrams Road. The
applicant stated that during arrival and dismissal times, cars will be asked to exit through one of
the two (2) driveways on Abrams Road or Richardson College Drive where a no left turn sign will
be added.

Ms. Peters stated a summary of applicant’s request is in the staff report along with the additional
conditions which include a maximum of 400 students on campus per day, and as of today, 199
letters in support of the proposal have been received and no correspondence in opposition. The
applicant is here to present their project and she stated she is available to answer any questions.

Commissioner Beach asked what the occupant capacity was for the storm shelter.

Mr. Chavez stated he was not sure of the capacity, but the size would have to meet the requirement
based on the Building Code.

Chairman Marsh asked to confirm that a Traffic Impact Analysis was not requested or required by
staff for this request.

Mr. Chavez replied that he was correct.



3

Chairman Marsh asked if he was correct in stating that the exhibits the applicant provided met the
onsite queuing so that there is no anticipated backup onto Abrams Road.

Mr. Chavez advised that the proposed queuing exceeded what the city considers to be appropriate
for the site including some surplus. In addition, as the school reaches capacity or December 1% of
every year after reaching their capacity, they will need to review their queuing analysis and submit
it to the City of Richardson.

Chairman Marsh stated they have a land to the south to potentially modify the queuing if necessary.
Mr. Chavez replied yes.

Chairman Marsh asked if there is currently a left-hand turn lane southbound on Abrams Road.
Mr. Chavez said yes.

Chairman Marsh asked if during drop-off and pick-up time are the vehicles allowed to make the
left hand turn into the main entry.

Mr. Chavez said yes.
Chairman Marsh asked staff if Richardson College Drive currently has a left-hand turn.
Mr. Chavez advised that there is a southbound left hand turn bay for Richardson College Drive.

Chairman Marsh asked if there were any other questions for staff, seeing none the public hearing
was opened and the applicant was asked to come forward.

Mr. Brittan Church, 516 Westshore Drive, Richardson 75080 stated that he is a member of the
Board of Trustees for Coram Deo Academy and serves as a volunteer for the school. He further
advised that he has been in commercial retail development for 25 years working in Richardson
with the CityLine multi-family mixed development.

Jon Jordan, headmaster of Coram Deo Academy, Dallas campus, 814 Westwood Drive,
Richardson, TX stated their Dallas campus is seeking to move from its current location at Temple
Shalom to this facility and clarified their mission is to train ethical servant leaders and wise thinkers
who will shape culture through the glory of God by partnering with Christian families and their
churches. Along with pushing their students and families towards excellence in academics, fine
arts, and athletics they are training them in wisdom and virtue so that all the knowledge and
excellence is pointed in the right and noble direction.

Mr. Jordan stated they are a fully accredited classical Christian university model school with three
(3) campuses across north Texas with faculty who are experts in their fields, some holding
advanced degrees and are all required to work towards the ACCS master teacher certification. As
a private Christian religious school, they are 100% privately funded and the daily enrollment for
this upcoming school year is 240 students on any given day and 480 total with the maximum daily
enrollment not to exceed 400 on campus per day which covers the occupancy for the storm shelter.



4

Mr. Church stated that on April 24, 2024, City Council denied the original application (ZF 24-02),
however, they did provide comments on issues that needed to be addressed. There were discussions
about the viability of this being a potential redevelopment site instead of the use of an existing
structure, traffic movements on Abrams Road, any impacts as it relates to future developments on
the Richardson ISD land to the West, financial impacts to Richardson ISD and the impact to the
Richland Neighborhood Association.

Mr. Church addressed the redevelopment tract and stated the building was built in 1995 by Binnerri
Presbyterian Church and has been well maintained and is a space that Coram Deo Academy can
step into with slight modifications, the transaction is based on building per squate foot pricing not
redevelopment pricing, and Binnerri desires to sell to an institution that is'going to continue their
mission.

Mr. Church stated City Council had concerns regarding traffic movement onto Abrams; they will
be placing restricted left turns onto Abrams during pick up and drop off times. They will continue
to work with the City of Richardson police for traffic control requirements included in the Concept
Plan and Traffic Study. Coram Deo Academy does nottake any money from the State so there
would be no competition with RISD who were not opposed to their initial application. The
applicant addressed impacts to neighborhood and surrounding property owners by answering all
concerns and have received neighborhood letters of support and no opposition.

Commissioner Purdy asked if Richardson ISD was concerned with state funding or were they
concerned that students would be drawn.away.

Mr. Church replied that Richardson ISD was concerned because they thought Coram Deo
Academy was a charter school:

Vice Chairman Southardasked what some of the elements of opposition were that came from the
neighborhood associations.

Mr. Church stated neighbors were concerned about cars lining up along Abrams Road, however,
we were able to reassure that there is plenty of queuing space, they also wanted to make sure there
was enough parking for the students, and there are 201 parking spaces on the Richardson side of
the property that meets the requirement.

Vice Chairman Southard asked if Binnerri Presbyterian Church was affiliated with Coram Deo
Academy.

Mr. Church answered no.

Chairman Marsh asked if there was anyone who would like to speak in support or opposition of
the request.

Mr. Jerry Walker, 511 Goodman Drive, Richardson, TX 75081, representing the Richland Park
neighborhood directly next to the subject site where he has lived for thirteen (13) years and has
served as the Richland Neighborhood Association Treasurer. Their Association has no objections
or opposition to Coram Deo, they look forward to having them in the community.



5

Mr. Donald Kim, 1301 Abrams Road, Richardson, TX 75081, Chair of the Session at Binnerri
Presbyterian Church and on behalf of the congregation support Coram Deo Academy moving into
the neighborhood. They were able to enter a contact with them last fall and feel the faith-based
Christian School will benefit the City of Richardson.

Seeing no more speakers, Chairman Marsh made a motion to close the public-hearing.
Commissioner Beach seconded the motion and motion passed 7-0.

Vice Chairman Southard commented that the crowd was the largest that has attended a CPC
meeting in his time as a member.

Motion: Commissioner Costantino made a motion to recommend approval of the request
as presented. Commissioner Beach seconded the motion. Motion passed 7-0.

3. Zoning File 24-18 Special Development Plan — The Nest Wellness Village: Consider and act on a
request for approval of a Special Development Plan to allow a non-residential mixed-use health and
wellness center comprised of multiple buildings in lieu of residential development on 1.33 acres,
including 0.042 acres for a total of 1.37 acres currently zoned Main Street/Central Expressway PD
Planned Development District (Main Street Sub-District) located at the southeast corner of E. Kaufman
Street and S. Texas Street. Owner: Scott Sanders and the City of Richardson. Staff: Derica Peters.

Ms. Peters began by stating that the subject site is located at the southeast corner of Texas Street
and Kauffman Street in the Main Street Sub-District of the Main Street/ Central Expressway Form
Based Code and is comprised of four (4) vacant lots for a total of 1.37 acres.

The applicant is requesting a Special Development Plan with modified development standards to
allow additional uses for establishing a health and wellness village, however, this area of the Main
Street/ Central Expressway, Main Street Sub-District is limited to residential use only, meaning
residential single family or mixed-use containing residential or live work units.

Ms. Peters explained the applicant proposed uses are typical with a retail development and include
retail, restaurant, personal care services and health clubs; and are also requesting approval to allow
special events which may include outdoor yoga classes, events for families, mothers, and women
to be held by the non-profit that the applicant runs, called the Nest Motherhood.

The concept plan provided by the applicant shows the proposed development with seven (7)
individual buildings for a total of 18,000 square feet with Building 1 being the primary entrance
to the site off E. Kaufman Street. A six (6) foot-tall tubular metal fence along S. Texas Street will
be provided between the buildings.

Ms. Peters further stated the buildings are laid out so that they are facing the interior of the site
surrounding a 10.800 square foot courtyard intended to be used for outdoor gatherings and
activities. Building 1 is 6,000 square feet, Buildings 2 through 7 are each 2,000 square feet and a
community garden is located at the southeast corner of the site.

Ms. Peters indicated the site is required to have sixty (60) parking spaces provided onsite; however,
the concept plan provides forty-seven (47) parking spaces off-site along Texas and Kaufman
Streets and proposes to supplement those with additional spaces located at the public parking lot
north of the property.



6

The Concept Plan shows the streetscape along Texas Street will be re-designed to meet the current
streetscape standards for a six (6) foot wide sidewalk, six (6) foot landscape amenity zone and
parallel parking on the west side of the street. However, south of Kaufman Street they have
proposed perpendicular parking along the east side of Texas Street, which is a deviation from the
approved street cross-section for this sub district.

Ms. Peters presented images that show the style and the architecture of the buildings with Building
1 that faces Kaufman Street having two-stories with a wraparound porch and the front entrances
of Buildings 2 through 7 facing towards the interior of the site. With the Special Development Plan
the applicant has requested an allowance for the two-story primary building to exceed the allowed
maximum building height from twenty-seven (27) feet to forty (40) feet to the top of the ridge of
the roof.

Ms. Peters stated that as part of the Special Development Plan, a waiver has been requested on the
requirement for the rear of the buildings facing out to Texas Street not be developed to look like
the front of the building since they are in the rear. Summary of the Special Development Plan items
show some unique features in the way it is laid out, but‘it does not meet the Code, therefore the
identified areas will need modification.

Ms. Peters said that the proposed hours of operation are proposed from 8:00 AM to 8:00 PM daily
and will serve as another condition of the applicant’s request. Two (2) pieces of correspondence
have been received in support of this request and none in opposition, and stated she is available to
answer any questions.

Commissioner Beach stated that he understands that this is a Special Permit and if the Nest were
to sell the property, would all the different uses go-away or will they go on in perpetuity.

Ms. Peters replied that this request for a Special Development Plan with special conditions,
however, typically the applicant is limited to one operator, so this is not a typical condition of a
special development plan.

Commissioner Beach commented that it will go on forever, correct.

Ms. Peters replied yes.

Commissioner Costantino asked if the parallel parking would include a sidewalk, or will the
parking be in lieu of the sidewalk; also does the sidewalk disappear going north when reaching the
parallel parking or does it work around it.

Ms. Peters replied parallel parking is on the west side of Texas Street, which is required in the
streets cross section, and is limited to only show the parallel parking and the Central Trail with no
proposed sidewalk on the west side.

Commissioner Costantino asked what the east side would look like.

Ms. Peters explained that the east side is perpendicular parking with a six (6) foot wide sidewalk.

Commissioner Costantino asked if that sidewalk would be preserved.



Ms. Peters stated the applicant needs to dedicate additional right of way to preserve it.
Commissioner Costantino asked if the applicant was going to use some of the public shared
parking and if there was a standard limitation to how much parking could be used; did they have
any concern about how the parking would be distributed.

Mr. Chavez replied that there was not a standard limitation but there is distance criteria requiring
shared parking to be no further than 600 feet from the site which is why they showed parallel
parking on the west side of Texas and a perpendicular parking design to provide as many as
possible abutting the subject site.

Commissioner Costantino asked how far the front porch on Kaufman would be from the street or
the sidewalk.

Mr. Chavez replied that the actual edge of the overhang or porch itself is at the property line.
Commissioner Costantino asked if that would essentially go to the sidewalk.

Mr. Chavez said no, the sidewalk along Kaufman would be ten (10) feet from the sidewalk, but
the actual porch would go to the property line.

Commissioner Bohnsack asked where the shared parking is located and who is it shared with.

Ms. Peters stated the public parking lot is on the south side of Staycation Coffee at Polk Street and
Texas Street.

Chairman Marsh asked if the public parking lot was owned by the city.
Mr. Chavez replied yes.

Chairman Marsh asked if the forty-seven (47) parking spaces include the parallel spaces on the
west side of Texas Street.

Mr. Chavez replied yes.
Chairman Marsh asked if staff had looked at angled parking on the east side.

Mr. Chavez said they did but there is a drainage easement along the west property line so they
could not get the angled parking and it gets into the DART right of way.

Chairman Marsh stated that he was asking about the east side.

Mr. Chavez explained that they looked at angled parking and no matter the direction it would
create a situation where it would require traffic to access the site from on specific direction.

Chairman Marsh asked if the angled parking was on the east side of Texas, the angle would be
facing northeast, correct.



Mr. Chavez replied yes.
Chairman Marsh asked if staff applied the parking ratio for restaurants to any of the space.

Mr. Chavez stated that they looked at the parking ratio for retail and it is the same for restaurant,
however, there is no specific parking ratio for restaurant in the Main Street Sub-District.

Chairman Marsh asked why there was the wooden fence along the eastern’ property line
neighboring the residential and was it to be along the entire eastern boundary.

Mr. Chavez indicated that the fence is proposed along the east property in lieu of having a masonry
wall. There is an abutting residential six (6) foot tall fence in that area that the applicant intends to
rebuild with this development therefore, they are asking for relief from having a masonry wall
directly abutting the existing residential fence.

Chairman Marsh asked if it was going to be a six (6) foot wooden fence.

Mr. Chavez replied yes.

Chairman Marsh asked if staff could give the Commission a review about the glazing and finishing
requirements in the district.

Ms. Peters stated that all ground floor facades should have 50% glazing and the applicant is
reducing most if not all the facades to give the buildings a more residential feel.

Chairman Marsh asked if it is just on the public streets where that requirement comes into play.
Ms. Peters replied yes.
Chairman Marsh commented that we do not know what the proposal will be from applicant.

Ms. Peters replied that we don’t know but they have said they will probably not meet the minimum
required glazing percentage.

Chairman Marsh asked if there is a condition that is being recommended to deal with the issue.
Ms. Peters replied no but it is included in the special development plan as a modified condition.
Chairman Marsh asked what the modified condition was.

Ms. Peters replied that some of them are listed in the Special Development Plan but that the glazing
is not included.

Mr. Chavez stated condition number one (1) of the concept plan references the Special
Development Plan so whatever is listed on the concept plan are part of those conditions. Also, to
correct an earlier statement, the public parking property itself is not owned by the city, it is owned
by a private landowner.



9

Chairman Marsh asked if staff has any information about how long of a lease or contract the city
has on the public parking private landowner.

Assistant City Manager Goff stated that it is a long-term lease intended to continue until that whole
area redevelops and he does not have information on the exact term.

Chairman Marsh asked if there is any background information that could be given as to why the
current zoning in this area is limited to residential only.

Mr. Chavez stated when the property went through the entitlement process, the adjacent property
owners were concerned about the impact non-residential would have on their homes. Most of the
property is owned by the Kinder Family and they petitioned Council to restrict the types of uses
that would be allowed within the confines of that block and City Council enacted those restrictions.

Chairman Southard asked if the lots to the east are empty or are they currently built upon.

Mr. Chavez replied that there is an existing residential home directly to the east and some of the
land is undeveloped; there is also a single-family home on E. Phillips Street.

Chairman Marsh asked if the parking on Texas Street was in the existing right-of-way.

Mr. Chavez indicated that it would be once the right of way was dedicated and the dedication will
come off the east side of Texas Street.

Chairman Marsh commented that the eastern parking spaces are in effect on the private property
or east of the property line and-east of the Texas Street right-of-way.

Mr. Chavez answered yes, they are on the current property line and as part of their proposal they
will need to dedicate additional right-of-way to accommodate the head in parking, the landscape
buffer and the six (6) foot sidewalk.

Chairman Marsh stated with the existing right-of-way the City can only put in the parallel parking
or anothertraffic lane, correct.

Mr. Chavez answered the west right of way for Texas Street that is shown on the concept plan is
the existing right-of-way line and they are holding that right of way so the parallel parking spaces
are within the city’s existing right of way, then there would be 51-53 feet of current right of way
from point to point and they will dedicate additional right-of-way on the east side of Texas Street.

Chairman Marsh asked if the applicant is responsible for improving those parking spaces.

Mr. Chavez commented that the code does not require the applicant to make those improvements
however, due to the existing condition of the property’s paving and drainage, to meet the City’s
development regulations, the applicant is willing to construct that portion of Texas Street from
Kaufman southbound to the end of the property line; then a portion of Kaufman Street to the
property line, otherwise they would have to wait until the City was in the position to make those
improvements.



10

Chairman Marsh stated the applicant is going to have to rebuild if it is approved.

Mr. Chavez replied yes if they want to move forward on this development.
Chairman Marsh commented that no additional right of way is required from DART.
Mr. Chavez stated that is correct.

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Marsh asked the applicant to come forward and
present the case.

David Harrell, 3824 Sleepy Lane, Dallas, TX 75229 developer stated he has‘been involved in
investments in Richardson including Lockwood Distilling, Partenope Ristorante, and Staycation
in the CORE district. Now he is working with the owner of The Nest and played a short video to
give the Commission an idea of the project.

Dr. Courtney Gowin, 4811 Broadway Street, Addison, TX stated that she had a dream to build a
community centered around mothers. After two (2) years into her private practice, she has been
able to expand it into a 3,000 square foot Wellness Center in Addison. She would bring in a
community of healers and mothers that impacted her and thousands of other women around the
DFW area.

Dr. Gowin stated that she worked on projects with Harvard University to identify areas of why
maternal health is such an issue in the United States and discovered it is because of the lack of
community and accessible resources to mothers. There needs to be a greater impact and out of the
1,200 patients she sees every month, 80% of them reside in Richardson.

Dr. Gowin referred to the Magnolia in Waco that shows how much family has an impact on a
community. Richardson is special and clearly the community is centered around family and
bringing in the concept of introducing seniors with new mothers can help children's behavior
improve and the seniors regaining the feeling of purpose and improve their mental health. This is
something that's going to be the heartbeat and the soul of her nonprofit by bringing the two
generations together. Dr. Gowin also stated that they are fully funded by a private investor.

Chairman Marsh stated that if the center’s spaces are retail, how will they get material in and out
and where is their loading and service area.

Mr. Harrell replied that the only restaurant portion is going to be in the main building, which will
have site access near the dumpster for loading and unloading of materials. None of the bungalows
in the back are going to have a restaurant component so there will be concrete or rock pathways
that lead all the way around the green space where they will load in and out early in the morning
or later in the evening.

Dr. Gowin stated all their businesses will be based around wellness and community and each
bungalow will have a theme and two tenants with 1,000 square foot each of space that work
synergistically together drawing in small local businesses to have a support system built around
them.



11

Chairman Marsh asked if they planned for other dumpsters other than the one next to Building 1.
Mr. Harrell stated they only have the one single dumpster next to the building.

Chairman Marsh asked if there was going to be a sidewalk next to the wooden fence behind
Buildings 2 and 3.

Mr. Harrell replied, no.

Scott Marek, 2944 Forest Hills Lane, Richardson, the architect for the project stated between
Buildings 5 and 6, there are plans for another access point that will service some of the back
buildings, however, the details have not been worked out so the only trash plan for now is in the
area on Kaufman Street.

Chairman Marsh asked if the only way into the property would be through Building 1.

Mr. Marek replied yes.

Dr. Gowin advised that the concept was to have mothers to be able to relax and let their children
play without running into the street and keep any outsiders from being on the property.

Chairman Marsh asked about landscaping behind the bungalows.

Mr. Malek stated it is just a hard walled building right up against the sidewalk and there is also six
(6) feet of planting zone and a two-to-three-foot strip between the sidewalk and the buildings.

Chairman Marsh asked what the request was relating to the glazing along Texas Street?

Mr. Marek advised that there is a heavy glass requirement and they wanted to keep it in a
residential scale in.terms of glass to wall ratio.

Chairman Marsh asked how that fits into the concept plan.
Mr. Chavez said they did not know what percentage of the glazing would be because they have
not designed the structures, but they know that it's going to be residential in nature opposed to a

retail storefront. The special development standards address the amount of glazing.

Ms. Peters stated the applicant has proposed a minimum 25% window area on the ground floor
facade facing Texas Street.

Vice Chairman Southard asked if Buildings 5 and 6 were going to have the appearance of a
residence, single story residence with a pitched roof.

Mr. Marek said yes.

Vice Chairman Southard asked if they expect their current clientele to make the move to
Richardson.



12

Dr. Gowin answered yes but they will also keep a boutique location in Addison.

Vice Chairman Southard asked what the time frame is for the project.

Dr. Gowin replied as soon as possible.

Commissioner Purdy asked if she had formally reached out to the Richardson Senior.Center.
Dr. Gowin replied, no.

Chairman Marsh asked if there was anyone who would like to speak in support or opposition of
the request.

Julie Robinson, 600 Nottingham Dr., Richardson, TX stated that she is a business owner in the
CORE District of Richardson and is very excited about the prospect of The Nest coming. The
wellness orientation would be very energetic and positive and will enhance the community.

Kasey Cummings, 1214 Ashland Drive, Richardson, TX stated she has been a Richardson resident
for ten (10) years and is the Executive Director of alocal nonprofit called All Moms that serve and
support mothers. She is in a unique position to‘hear the common requests of moms and families
and thinks the Nest Wellness Village will be a great addition. The concept of including multi
generational and interfaith programming is highly desirable for Richardson families.

Pat Kinder, 114 E Kaufman Street, Richardson spoke on behalf of the Kinder family who have
lived on the property for almost eighty (80) years, and own the whole center of the lot, the central
acreage, four of the five single family residences and the parking lot. They are not completely
opposed to the development, but they do have concerns.

Mr. Kinder advised that their concerns included some of the zoning that was being proposed for
the block, primarily being some of the relatively high heights, zero lot line opportunities and
building right up on the property line, which ways why they pushed for more residential as opposed
to a commercial, mixed-use, or high-rise type opportunities. They are happy with the low structure
height of proposed Buildings 2 through 7, however they would prefer Building 1 to be lower than
forty (40) feet high.

Mr. Kinder expressed they would rather have an eight (8) foot board-on-board wood privacy fence
with metal poles instead of six (6) foot wood fence between their property and the subject property.
The family is. concerned with the overlapping deeds on the property shown on the survey lines, so
instead of realigning the fence lines, they would prefer following the existing fence lines along the
cast side of the property along the northern piece and then down along to the other side.

Mr. Kinder explained that the fence on his sister’s property at 114 E Kaufman only goes out to the
edge of the house and if Building 1 is the primary entrance to the property, they are concerned
about foot traffic going across their front lawn and they would like landscaping or fencing options
that could deter people from constantly being on their property. There are also issues with the
placement of the dumpster like odors and trash coming across to their yard and they would propose
the dumpster be placed elsewhere.



13

Mr. Kinder stated that the block has bar ditches along Texas Street and Kaufman Street and parking
would cover an existing bar ditch that continues in front of their properties, they want to be ensured
of proper drainage. Also, he does not see any provision about the lighting illumination on their
yard or the lights being on all night.

Something else that was mentioned in the presentation is that this would be a non-aleohol
environment. I don't know how that works from a zoning standpoint as to whether alecohol would
be allowed, or if that would only be something that would come up again through a‘special permit
process down the road.

Mr. Kinder advised the alley where the proposed dumpster is a remnant, city owned stub out alley
way that has not been addressed if the city will abandon it or if it will be quitclaimed to the
developer or divided by property owners on each side. There is another remnant east of the site
between Phillips Street and the parking lot owned by him and they are hoping to work something
out with the City to get the remnant abandoned and quitclaimed.

Mr. Kinder concluded by stating in the report there was a statement that the proposed request
wouldn't have a significant impact on the surrounding roadway system or impact existing utilities.
He questioned whether the survey people understood-what the capacity of the utilities are, and the
effects construction has on older properties water systems and sewer, there is a lot of sediment; it
works out fine for the new development, but it.could have impacts on the existing older properties.

Reed Robinson, 600 Nottingham Richardson TX owner of Beyond the Bar an alcohol-free bottle
shop located in the CORE District stated the project could be a real game changer for the
neighborhood.

Chairman Marsh asked if the applicant wanted to answer some concerns of the Kinder family.
Mr. Harrell stated they agreed to the minimum of an eight (8) foot fence and to follow the existing
fence line; they are-aware that drainage is a big concern, and he anticipate it will be some box
drainage connects to the existing large box drain within DART’s right-of-way of DART; also
proper lightingis a big part of wellness and it had not been discussed but he believed they would
follow a dark sky style lighting plan.

Dr. Gowin stated she wanted to work in honor of the Kinder family and what they have built in
their family legacy and the beauty of intergenerational living.

Chairman Marsh asked staff if there was any reason why the fence was six (6) feet.

Mr. Chavez answered the City’s Code allows a maximum eight (8) foot fence and the minimum
height can be changed to be eight (8) feet.

Chairman Marsh asked if both properties would follow the existing fence line and if it will require
an agreement between them.

Mr. Chavez answered that is correct.

Chairman Marsh asked if anything could be done about foot traffic across 114 E. Kaufman.



14

Mr. Chavez responded they could turn the eastbound sidewalk on Kaufman north to encourage
individuals to use a sidewalk to get to the site itself.

Chairman Marsh asked staff if there were any requirements for size, number or distances for the
dumpsters or the access for the trucks and screening type of things.

Mr. Chavez replied that the minimum design standards for the enclosure are typically 11 feet x 14
feet for a single dumpster and the truck itself needs a minimum of forty-two (42)feet of backup

space, so it could fit in the southwest corner of the property.

Chairman Marsh asked if anyone has looked at the aerial of the adjoining property to the south and
whether there are issues with the dumpster abutting the apartment complex.

Mr. Chavez replied if should not an issue, but it will be reviewed to ensure there are no issues.
Chairman Marsh asked about the situation with the bar ditch on Kaufman Street.

Mr. Chavez advised any infrastructure would have to meet the development design standards and
when they get to that point, those will be addressed:

Chairman Marsh asked if the City would be looking at the lighting spillover.

Mr. Chavez replied, yes. The Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance has performance standards for
lighting, noise, odor, and any development would have to comply with those minimum
requirements, however alcohol sales could not be controlled through zoning.

Chairman Marsh asked staff about the alley at the northeast corner vacating or abandoning the
alley and if the property’s concept plan was based on all the alley going to the applicant?

Mr. Chavez repliedno, the notice was written to include that portion to allow the City the flexibility
to either abandon the alley right away in favor of the subject property or any portion of it to either
property owner. The acreage was included in the mailout notice since we could not rezone more
property than what was noticed, but we could rezone less property but all of it would be preliminary
discussions to see if it provides a benefit to either property owner.

Chairman Marsh asked where the alley was located on the concept plan.
Mr. Chavez stated at the northeast corner of the site as shown on the Concept Plan.

Chairman Marsh cited the dumpster may overlap the center line of the alley so would it go to the
applicant.

Mr. Chavez replied yes, that is the what the concept plan shows.
Chairman Marsh asked if the bar ditch, drainage, and capacity of the utility lines would need to be

studied further as to whether the lines should be replaced or upsized at the time they come in with
their development plans.



15

Mr. Chavez answered that is correct.

Chairman Marsh asked if there was a deficiency would it be determined at that time and the City
could impose some requirement for the applicant to upgrade those lines at their own expense.

Mr. Chavez replied yes.

Chairman Marsh stated some of the applicant’s request is out of the Commission’s purview as it
has not been studied with the civil and engineering plans and whether it meets Code.

Mr. Chavez said that is correct, the details will be ironed out should the subject request be approved
and at the time development plans are submitted.

Seeing no more questions, Chairman Marsh made a motion to close the public hearing,
Commissioner Purdy seconded the motion and motion passed 7-0.

Chairman Marsh stated he felt the concept fits in with the neighborhood and transitions the CORE
District to become a gathering place for the community.

Vice Chairman Southard stated the concept would be a distinguishing addition to Richardson’s
reputation.

Commissioner Costantino liked the concept and the issue with the lighting meeting standards could
be dealt with, but he suggested the dumpster could be put on the southwest corner of the site.

Chairman Marsh commented that he would recommend making a change to the dumpster location
and he asked if Building 1 was being limited to two (2) stories.

Mr. Chavez said yes.

Vice Chairman Southard asked about the forty (40) foot height of Building 1.

Mr. Chavez stated that the height was measured to the mid-point of the pitched roof.

Chairman Marsh advised that in an urban district like this, pedestrian activities are being
encouraged but he is hesitant about the head in parking on the east side and he suggested angle

parking to avoid possible collisions.

Commissioner Costantino stated Texas Street didn’t have much traffic and retail would not spring
up on the west side.

Vice Chairman Southard commented there was not much traffic in the area.

Chairman Marsh informed that in the future if the traffic got bad enough, they could come back
and change it to angle parking without needing any more right of way.

Mr. Chavez replied yes; however, parking spaces would be lost.



16

Chairman Marsh stated he would rather give up a few parking spaces for the safety and ease of
parking, but it could be restriped later if it became a problem.

Mr. Chavez stated there are design standards that need to be met based on the orientation of the
parking spaces; the parallel spaces are eight (8) feet wide; the travel lanes are now 24 feet in lieu
of 22 feet and the head in parking is 18 feet deep which met all the design standards.

Commissioner Costantino stated there would be more room to back out without thecar next to you
blocking you, right?

Mr. Chavez said that is correct.
Chairman Marsh asked staff if they knew what was the length of a normal vehicle?

Mr. Chavez replied they did not know what the length was, but the standard is 24 feet of pavement
for perpendicular parking spaces.

Commissioner Beach made a motion to approve ZF 24-18 with the provision that the dumpster be
moved to the southwest corner of the site.

Chairman Marsh asked if he would consider an amendment to his motion to increase the height of
the wooden fence to eight (8) feet.

Commissioner Beach said yes and increasing the height of the wooden fence to an eight (8) foot
fence on the existing fence line.

Mr. Chavez suggested to the Commission that in lieu of requiring the dumpster be moved, allow
the staff and the applicant to look at that design to see if it can be accomplished while meeting the
forty-two (42) feet of maneuvering space for the garbage truck. The dumpster could be placed
further into the building site creating additional length in the maneuvering space.

Commissioner Beach stated we can make the design work and that he wants this to move forward,
and thingscan be shifted around later.

Chairman Marsh asked if they could recommend approval as presented with the eight (8) foot
wooden fence along the fence line and the dumpster location to be determined.

Mr. Chavez suggested that the condition related to relocation of the dumpster to be determined at
a later date should not be included. Staff would work with the applicant to get the dumpster in the
best possible location prior to the City Council meeting which might not be at the southwest corner
of the property.

Mr. Chavez advised that Commissioner Beach would have to rescind his motion to require the
location of the dumpster to the southwest corner and only include the amendment to increase in

height of the fence from six (6) feet to eight (8) feet.

Commissioner Beach removed his amendment of the motion about the dumpster.



17

Motion: Commissioner Beach made a motion to recommend approval of the request as
presented with the amendment of increasing the height of the fence from 6-feet
to 8-feet. Commissioner Costantino seconded the motion. Motion passed 7-0.

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Marsh adjourned the re
meeting at 9:10 p.m.

Bryan Marsh, Chairman

S






